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1. Name
historic ~ Hutzler Brothers Palace Building B
and/or common Hutzler Brothers Palace Building

2. Location

street & number ~ 210-218 North Howard Street __nf_a_ not for publication

city, town Baltimore - Il{?_..__vicin_i?y_cf_ ~ congressional district Seventh
state Maryland code 24 county independent city code 210
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
district ___ public ____ occupied ___agriculture ____ museum
X_ building(s) _X_private ____ unoccupied _ X commercial ___ park
_ structure _ both _ X _work in progress educational _____ private residence
_ site Public Acquisition Accessible ____entertainment ___ religious
___ object ____in process __yes: restricted government _ scientific
____ being considered X _ yes: unrestricted ____industrial ____ transportation
X not applicable ___ no ____ military ___other:

4. Owner of Property

name Murdock Development Company, attn.: Mr. Thomas J. Hutchinson, President

street & number ) 29 Pa_ﬂf _A\fenue i SR

Baltimore n/a Maryland 21201

city, town —L % vicinity of state

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Baltimore City Courthouse

100 North Holliday Street
street & number e o .

Baltimore Maryland 21202

city, town state
6. Representation in Existing Surveys
Maryland Historical Trust via Tax Act (1982)
tile. Historic Sites Inventory __ has this property been determined elegible? X yes __ no
date ___1978 . federal _Xstate ——county ____ local

Maryland Historical Trust, 21 State Circle

stiite .Mary].and 2_1__&0}

depository for survey records

city, town Anpapolls




7. Description B-2279

Condition Check one Check one
___excellent deteriorated _ unaltered __X original site
_X_good ____ruins __X altered ~moved  date _ n/a -
_ fair —__ unexposed

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

Number of Resources Number of previously listed
Contributing Noncontributing National Register properties
1 0 buildings included in this nomination: 0
0 0 sites
0 0 structures Original and historic functions
0 0 objects and uses: commercial
1 0 Total

DESCRIPTION SUMMARY:

The Hutzler Brothers Palace Building at 210-218 North Howard Street in
the 19th-century commercial center of Baltimore, Maryland was constructed in
1888, with a south bay added in 1924. The original Romanesque eclectic facade
is three bays wide, five stories in height, constructed of limestone with pressed
copper trim to the design of Baldwin and Pennington, one of Baltimore's most
important architectural firms of the period. The ground floor facade was
redesigned in 1931 to conform with the Art Moderne detailing of the "Greater
Hutzlers" building constructed against the north wall of the Palace. The ground
floor facade is faced with polished black granite, with rectangular show windows
surmounted by transoms with cast-bronze screens flanking the recessed central
entrance; the entrance, which consists of a pair of aluminum revolving doors, is
richly embellished with Art Moderne ribs, fins, sunrise motifs, and a stylized
caduceus below the logo "Hutzler Brothers Co. 1858-1888'and a seated figure of
Justice, the firm's trademark. Above the ground floor, the original facade
remains intact. The first and third bays have a polygonal projecting bay window
on the second and third floors, with a spandrel between the floors sheathed in
embossed copper with a geometric foliated design and the Hutzer coat of arms;
the fourth floor has full-width semicircular arches holding quatrapartite windows.
A heavv belt course with Sullivanesque carved ornament spans the building between
the fourth and fifth floors. At fifth-floor level, four 1/1 sash windows are
arrayed in ribbon-like fashion in each bay. The central bay is defined by trefoil
columns running from the second through the fourth floors, with a carved band at
the third floor level using Sullivanesque foliated details and masks. The area
below this belt course has a full-width horseshoe arch the face of which repeats
the foliated carving. The third and fourth floors in the central bay are a two
story high triple arcaded gallery, with segmental compound openings in the upper
part and rectangular openings below. The fourth floor windows have round headed
1/1 sash, the third floor 1/1 sash with operating transoms above. The parapet
wall above the central bay is a richly carved pediment emblazoned with a large
seated figure of Justice in high relief. Block letters on a linen fold scroll
spell out "Hutzler Brothers." The south bay, added in 1924, was remodeled on the
oround floor in 1931, and repeats the polished granite facing appearing on the
main section, plus the addition of a recessed plate door. On the upper stories
the detailing of the original building is repeated here. The windows in each bay
are triple, with heavy frames and recessed transom; window detailing conforms to
that of corresponding floors of the original building. The interior of the Palace
Building has been considerably altered throughout the twentieth century, most
recently in 1976, and no evidence of the original fabric remains.

For General Description, see Continuation Sheet No. 1
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CENERAL DESCRIPTION:

The Hutzler Brothers Palace Building at 210-218 North Howard Street in
the 19th-century commercial center of Baltimore, Maryland was constructed in
1888, with a south bay added in 1924. The original Romanesque eclectic facade
is three bays wide, five stories in height, constructed of limestone with pressed
copper trim to the design of Baldwin and Pennington, one of Baltimore's most
important architectural firms of the period. The ground floor facade was
redesigned in 1931 to conform with the Art Moderne detailing of the "Greater
Hutzlers" building constructed against the north wall of the Palace. The ground
floor facade is faced with polished black granite, and repeats the show window
details of the 1931 construction in the first and third bays. These windows
are rectangular, divided into two vertical lights with heavy mullions, and
have cast bronze screens covering the horizontal transom-like windows above the
show windows. The main entrance is recessed into the center bay using splayed

walls at the outer face, and a stepped soffit. The details of the entrance are
duplicates of the entrance to the 1931 structure, with a pair of aluminum
revolving doors separated with a vertical window panel. The semi-circular door

enclosures are topped with ribbed aluminum panels and the flat wall surface
above is decorated with horizontal segmental fins, emphasizing the cylindrical
form of the doors. The space above the panel that separates the doors has a
stylized caduceus, and the entire upper part of the wall is framed by bronze
panels with suunrise motifs. The side walls of the recessed entrance have
single, rectangular lighted show windows. The logo "Hutzler Brothers Co.
1858-1888" in Art Moderne typeface, and a bas-relief seated figure of Justice,
the firm's trademark, are etched into the polished granite surface above the
entrance.

Above the ground floor, the original facade remains intact. The first and
third bays are identical in design. The second and third floors have a polygonal
projecting bay window, with large single lights of glass framed with copper
clad round columns and transom bars. FEach window has a full width transom, and
the spandrel between the two floors is sheathed with embossed copper decorated
with a stamped geometric foliated design and the Hutzler Brothers coat-of-arms
in relief. The slender columns run full height to the roof of the bay unit,
terminating in cushioned floral capitals. The copper cornice of the bay units
has a double row of dentiles below a cyma-reversa crown mold. The fourth floor
of both bays have full width semi-circular arches with quatrapartite wood framed
windows, fixed in the outer sections, 1/1 double hung in the two center parts.
The face of the arches have radiating voussoirs without keystones and the ashlar
limestone faced spandrels have bas-relief medallions with interlocking basket-
weave inserts. A hooded heavy belt courseruns the full width of the building
between the fourth and fifth floors, with a label mold and roll mold below a

See Continuation Sheet No. 2
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GENERAL DESCRIPTION (continued)

heavily carved frieze and a deep ovolo bed mold and cornice. The frieze is
carved with Sullivanesque floral and geometric designs and three masks. The
design of the fifth floor is constant for all three bays, consisting of rows of
four 1/1 double hung sash arranged in ribbon-like fashion within each bay,

below a heavy lintel made up of alternating rusticated and dressed limestone
blocks. The windows in each row are separated by slender stone columns with
cushioned floral caps and molded bases. The bays are divided by additional rows
of three columns of similar design.

The high parapet wall in the two outside bays has rectangular pedestals
at the edges, with carved floral inserts and carved antefixae. The frieze is
composed of alternating squares and circles each with bas-relief floral designs
carved within the margins.

The central bay is defined by trefoil columns running from the second
through the fourth floors, with a carved band at the third floor level and
carved cushioned capitals below the belt course between the fourth and fifth
floors. The carved band at the third floor level continues across the full bay,
creating a belt course of exceptional design, using carved Sullivanesque floral
details and masks. The area below this belt course has a full width horseshoe
arch, the face of which and the spandrels repeat the exceptional stone floral
carvings. The margins of the spandrels and the extrado and soffit of the arch
are unenriched. The existing steel industrial sash is a 1931 replacement of
the original wood framed tripartite sash. The third and fourth floors in the
central bay are a two story high triple arcaded gallery, with segmental compound
openings in the upper part and rectangular openings below. The arcade is
divided with three three-part columns with floral caps and molded necking. The
fourth floor windows have round headed wood 1/1 double hung sash, the third
floor 1/1 double hung sash with operating transoms above. The spandrel is
decorated with recessed squares enclosing pyramidal bosses.

The parapet wall above the central bay is a classical pediment with raking
cornice and returns, supported by 11 scroll consoles and outlined at the roof
line with tall pyramidal pinnacles. The richly carved pediment is emblazoned
with a large seated figure of Justice in high relief holding a banner preclaiming

her as the store's trademark. Block letters on a linen fold scroll spell out
"Hutzler Brothers."

The south bay, added in 1924, was remodeled on the ground floor in 1931,
and repeats the polished granite facing with large show window and cast bronze
grille over the flat transom-like upper window appearing on the main section,
plus the addition of a recessed plate door. On the upper stories the carved
belt course at the third floor of the original building is repeated here, as

See Continuation Sheet No, 13
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GENERAL DESCRIPTION (continued)

is the flat spandrel with pyramidal bosses at the fourth floor level and the
carved frieze at the fifth. The parapet wall repeats the pyramidal detailing
of the fourth floor band. The windows in each bay are triple, with heavy
frames and recessed transom. The windows in the fourth floor are decorated by
the addition of the same columns used in the fourth floor of the central bay.
The fifth floor window details are identical to those used at this level in
the original building.

The interior of the Palace Building has been considerably altered throughout

the twentieth century, Tost recently in 1976, and no evidence of the original
fabric remains to view.

The above is an edited version of material prepared by Russell Wright in
August 1978 for the Baltimore City Department of Housing and Community
Development, on file at the Maryland Historical Trust.



8. Significance - B-2279

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

— prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric __ community planning ____ landscape architecture ____ religion

. 1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic -~ conservation —law ____science

__1500-1599 ____ agriculture ____economics _literature _ sculpture

___1600-1699 _X_ architecture ___ education __ military ____ social/

_1700-1799 .____ant - engineering —_ music humanitarian

_ X 1800-1898 _X commerce __exploration/settlement ___ philosophy ____ theater

X 1900~ ____ communications — industry —_politics/government ___ transportation
____invention — other (specify)

Specific dates 15883 1924 Builder/Architect  Baldwin & Pennington (1888)

e ryemndeled 1931 James R. Edmunds (1931)

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)
Applicable Criteria: A, C

Applicable Exception: none
Level of significance for evaluation: local

SIGNIFICANCE SUMMARY:

The Hutzler Brothers Palace Building is significant for its architecture,
and for its association with the history of retailing in Baltimore. Designed
by Baldwin and Pennington, one of Maryland's most important architectural firms
of the period, the building was upon its completion in 1888 the largest and
most elegant department store structure in Baltimore's retail center. With its
richly ornamented facade of carved limestone and pressed copper, the building
presents an outstanding example of Romanesque eclectic design, and no finer
example of this late 19th century style exists in Baltimore. Reflecting the
growing importance of the Hutzler firm to the commercial community of Baltimore,
the south bay was added in 1924 as a compatible expansion of the retail sales
space, and the ground floor facade was redesigned in 1931 to conform with the
Art Moderne detailing of a new facility which adjoined the Palace on the north.
This 1931 remodeling, part of a major expansion program dubbed "Greater Hutzler's'"
illustrates the vitality and confidence of the firm in spite of the economic
adversities of the Great Depression, and represents a prominent expression of
the increasingly-rare Art Moderne style; fewer than 40 structures reflecting
Art Moderne influence survive in Baltimore. The building derives additional
significance from its association with the Hutzler Brothers Company, which was
founded at this location in 1858. The highly successful firm was among the
pioneers of department store merchandising in Baltimore, and instituted a
number of progressive policies regarding pricing, service, and employee benefits
in the late 19th century which have contributed to its continuing prosperity.
In continuous operation on the same site from 1858 until 1981, when the Palace
Building was temporarily closed for renovation, the Hutzler firm is believed
to hold the record for longevity in an original location among American
department stores. Upon completion of the current renovation, Hutzler's will
reopen the ground floor of the Palace Building to retail customers.

For History and Supporting Documentation, see Continuation Sheet No. &
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HISTORY AND SUPPORT:

Moses Hutzler, father of the three original Hutzler brothers, emigrated
to America in 1838 and began his mercantile career near Frederick, Maryland.
He later moved to Baltimore and started a store on Eutaw Street where he
remained in business until 1875. In 1858 Moses Hutzler gave his name and credit
to his son Abram to open a retail shop at Howard and Clay Streets where the
current Palace Building stands. Shortly thereafter, with his brother Charles,
Abram opened a wholesale business on Baltimore Street and the running of the
retail establishment fell to the voungest brother, David. After the Civil War
the retail end of the business grew so rapidly that by the eighties the whole-
sale operation was closed and all brothers concentrated on the Howard Street
store. At this time Hutzler's instituted basic policies that proved instrumental
to the company's success through the years to the present. These policies
covered employees' welfare, guarantees of quality and dependability, and
delivery and customer special services. Hutzler's "one-price policy," announced
in 1868, was a progressive step at a time when most retail transactions still
involved haggling to arrive at the final price of an item; in charging all
customers the same marked price, Hutzler's adopted the marketing strategy of
the most avant-garde Paris and New York department stores of the day. Hutzler's
was the first Baltimore department store to offer a delivery service, providing
delivery by horsedrawn wagon in 1874 (and employing the first electric delivery
truck in the city in 1899).

By the late eighties, business was so improved that the brothers decided
to erect the current Palace Building to accommodate the expansion. The city's
leading architects, Baldwin and Pennington, were selected to do the job.
E, Francis Baldwin (1837-1916) attended public school in Baltimore and then
studied architecture and engineering at Troy's Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute.
He formed a partnership with Josias Pennington in 1883 that lasted until his
death; this partnership was responsible for many of Baltimore's most notable
late 19th and early 20th century buildings. In addition to the Maryland Club
(1893) in the Richardsonian Romanesque style, the Fidelity Building (1893),
Mount Royal Station (1896) executed in rusticated granite and Romanesque in
style, Baltimore City College Building (1895) at Howard and Centre Streets,
and the Maryland Trust Building at Calvert and Redwood Streets, this firm also
designed numerous churches and religious institutions. For many years Baldwin
was the architect for the Baltimore and Ohio Railroad for which he designed
warehouses, stations and related buildings. His stations at Point of Rocks and
Oakland, Maryland are best known today; both are listed in the National Register.
In the design of the 1888 Hutzler Brothers Palace Building, the architects used
an architectural vocabulary that included elaborate surface ornamentation.
This retail building is an important and atypical early statement in the history
qf this firm, which tended to specialize in large office buildings, transportation
tacilities, and ecclesiastical and institutional structures.

See Continuation Sheet No. 5
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HISTORY AND SUPPORT (continued)

The Hutzler Brothers' business continued to expand during the next three
decades. In 1924 the decision was reached to add a fourth bay to the south
of the Palace Building in a style closely matching the original. 1In 1931,
in the midst of the Great Depression, Hutzler's again led the business community
in expressing faith in the city and launched a major expansion program, dubbed
"Greater Hutzler's," An additional five story building was constructed to the
north of the Palace in an Art Moderne style. The first floor of the Palace was
remodeled during this expansion. The black granite veneer remains today as a
symbol of this last alteration to the original building.

The Hutzler Family mercantile business remained in continuous operation
at the same location from 1858 until the Palace building was temporarily closed
for renovation in 1981; this is believed to be the longest continuous period of
operation on the original site in the history of American department stores.
Upon completion of the renovation currently in progress, Hutzler's will reopen
the ground floor of the Palace to retail shoppers.
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MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES:

Beirne, Francis F. Hutzler's, a Picture History, 1858-1958. Baltimore:
Hutzler's, 1958).

Dorsey, John and James Dilts. A Guide to Baltimore Architecture. (Centreville,
Md.: Tidewater Publishers, 1981).

Hendrickson, Robert. The Grand Emporiums: The Tllustrated History of America's
Great Department Stores. (New York: Stein and Day, 1979).

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION:

Boundaries consist of the city lots upon which the resource stands,
known as 210-218 North Howard Street and recorded in the Land Records of
Baltimore City, Liber 4131, Folio 403.

BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION:

The nominated property, 0.24 acre, comprises only the city lots upon
which the resource stands.



9. Major Bibliog.aphical References B-2279

See Continuation Sheet No. 6

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property _ 0.24 a&
Quadrangle name _E._ait_}more Eaet 2 Maryland Quadrangle scale _ __l_._2_f+_,_000
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Verbal boundary description and justiflcau;ﬁ - - B
See Continuation Sheet No. 6

Lisf ;II s-tlie; an;i counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state cog!f_ county . - code

state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

nametitle Peter Kurtze with CCITIETE!Etll)nb _by Edw_ard Perlman

organization Maryland Historical Trust . date March 1983

city or town Annapolis state Maryland

12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certification

The evaluated significance of this property within the state is:

____ national _____ state L local

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89—
665), | hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated
according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service.

State Historic Preservation Officer signature L} é &é ;1

titie

STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER date .5 . z; gq
e year T §




K 45 MY

| FREDERI

17'30"

p- A1 79
Hutzler Beothers Palace Bldg.
Baltimore, Mdrjfﬂnd

/‘3/36"290/#3502_40

434

1347

520000 |
FEET |

| MID

|BRA

B
hi

o

b LAN

Winans
Cove

Bar

. Maryland “Light FeRrY BAR CHANNEL (WEST SECTION)

4346 ;_ ]

. Yacht Club

‘B_rnen!'n g

39°1%
76°37'3

S

000 FEET

\ —a Park
\ \
Ve

\ BROOKLYN I 1 M, 7
EN BURNIE 61 M/

362







g-2339 mﬂ

Murdock Development Company

Murdock Place » 20 Park Avenue « Baltimore, Maryland 21201

1l of 7 o
Hutzler Brothers Palace Building

210-218 North Howard Street
Baltimore, Maryland 21201

Photograph by Murdock Development Company
Spring, 1982

Negative with M.D.C. ‘
Main facade; photographer facing west

[~ 23279 ...‘J..M..W

Murdock Place « 20 Park Avenue » Baltimore, Maryland 21201
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Hutzler Brothers Palace Building

210-218 North Howard Street

Baltimore, Maryland 21201

Photograph by Murdock Development Company
Spring, 1982

Negative with M.D.cC.

Howard Street entrance showing 1931 black
granite veneer, entrance doors, display
window and logo with date; photographer
facing west.







B-2279 mm
Murdock Development Company

Murdock Place » 20 Park Avenue s Baltimore, Maryland 21201
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Hutzler Brothers Palace Building

210-218 North Howard Street

Baltimore, Maryland 21201

Photograph by Murdock Development Company
Spring, 1982

Negative with M.D.cC.

2nd floor arch above entrance in center bay
of original building showing stone
ornamental detail and copper detail between
2nd and 3rd floor bay windows of outer bays

of %rlginal building; photographer facing
west.

A-xatq mM
Murdock Development Company

Murdock Place ¢ 20 Park Avenue « Baltimore, Maryland 21201

4 of 7 o
Hutzler Brothers Palace Building

210-218 North Howard Street

Baltimore, Maryland 21201

Photograpﬁ by Murdock Development Company
Spring, 1982

Negative with M.D.C.

3?3 and 4th floors of center and southern

bays of original building; photographer
facing west.
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Murdock Development Company

Murdock Place « 20 Park Avenue e Baltimore, Maryland 21201
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Hutzler Brothers Palace Building
210-218 North Howard Street
Baltimore, Maryland 21201
Photograph by Murdock Development Company
Spring, 1982
Negative with M.D.C.
1924 addition showing stone detail in
belting course between 2nd and 3rd floors,
3rd floor windows and lower section of
4th floor windows; photographer facing
west.
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Murdock Development Comparny

Murdock Place » 20 Park Avenue « Baltimore, Maryland 21201
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Hutzler Brothers Palace Building

210-218 North Howard Street

Baltimore, Maryland 21201

Photograph by Murdock Development Company

Spring, 1982

Negative with M.D.C.

4th and 5th floors and parapet of 1924

addition and southern bay of original

building showing elaborate ornamental
' stone work; photographer facing west.
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Hutzler Bxothers Palace Building
210-218 North Howard Street
Baltimore, Maryland 21201
Photograph by Murdock Development Company
Spring, 1982
Negative with M.D.cC.
4th and 5th floors of 1888 building showing
pediment over the center bay with the bas
relief figure of justice; photographer
facing west.
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rers APPLICATION — PART 1

(Pursuant to the Tax Reform Act of 1976)

Instructlions: Applicant should read the instructions carefully before completing application. No Certification may be made unless a completed application form has
been received (P.L 94-455) Use typewriter or print clearly in dark ink to complete the application form If additional space is needed to complete Pari 1 use the reverse
§ide or a separale plain sheet of paper clearly indicating the owner's name and mailing address Pan 1 of ttus application may be completed and sent to the approp::-
‘ate State Historic Preservation Officer at any time during the year. and may be sent separately or with Pan 2

PART1 EVALUATION OF SIGNIFICANCE

+ NamE of properTy. Hutzler Brothers Palace Building N -

Adgress of property Street_23.0-2318 North-Howard-Street————— —
Baltimore n/a sae Maryland 21201

Zip Code
Baltimore Retail Historic District (DOE)
The Palace Building was built
2. DESCRIPTION OF PHYSICAL APPEARANCE: in 1888 with the south bay added
isee instruclions for map and photograph requirements—use reverse side if necessary) in 1924. The or iginal Romane sque
Eclectic facade is three bays wide, five stories tall, of limestone
with copper trim. The ground floor has been altered to match the Art
Moderne detailing of the Hutzler's North Building, contiguous at the
3. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE:

(use reverse side if necessary) 'The Palace Building is an exceptional example of Roman-
esque eclectic design, and no finer example of this late 19thC style
exists in the city. Completed in 1888 to the designs of the nationally
important architectural firm of Baldwin and Pennlngton, the south bay
was added in 1924 and the ground floor chanqed in 1931. The Hutzler

Date of construction (if known} 1888 xj Onginal site 2 Moved Date ot alterations (1 known 1'92'4‘"1‘9'3‘1"'_—
4. NAME AND MAILING ADDRESS OF OWNER:

Murdock Development Company

City County

Name of fustonc distnict in which property i1s located

Name _____ —_—
sieet 2031 Nerth—Charles—Street, Suite-610

City Baltimore i - — .01 —
Telephone Number (during day) Area Code__ _.___30 1_834 .-.,05 20_ J I
| nereby atiest that the information | have provided 15 1o the best ol my knowiedae correct and that | am owner of the propeny described above

[ : : ' e - -
- 3 ’ ot 5 . . - .

Signature e S o T o] T R R T Spseeneee s L e _ Date_=« - 7 —_—

Vice President, Murdock Development Company

For office use only

The structure described above is included within the boundaries of the National Register histonic district and O contnibutes O does not contribute to the character of
the distnct

The structure O appears O does not appear to mee! National Register Criteria for Evaluation (36 CFR 60.6) and O will likely O will not be nominated to the National

Register in accord with the Department of the Intenor procedures (36 CFR 60) .

The structure is located in a district which T appears Z does not appear 1o meet Natuional Register Cyiteria for Evaluation (36 CFR 60 6).30 will likely O will not be nomi-
appears T does not appear to contribute to the character of said

nated 1o the National Hegnsier in accord wyh Department of the Interior procedures (36 CFR 60). and

district

Signature Da!ef' Zé ’f
Stale?ﬂgnc Preservation Officer

This properly has been evalualed according 1o the cnilenia and procedures set forth by the Depariment of the Intenior (36 CFR67) and 1f subject to depreciation under
section 167 ot the Internal Revenue Code of 1954

~1s hereby cerihied a mstonc siruciure

T does not coninbute 1o the character of the histonc arstrict and does not ment certilication as a historic structure Reasons given on the attached sheet

b e e e NI E S S L SR PO Lt

weeper of the National Register

L e S S A R _ Date B R s
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2. (cont.) north,faced with polished black granite. The main entrance is ¥

recessed into the center bay, the semi-circular door enclosures topped - &

with ribbed aluminum panles and the flat wall surface above enriched with !
horizontal fins, emphasizing the cyllndrlcal form of the doors. A logo
"Hutzler Brothers Co. 1858-1888" in Art Moderne type and a bas-relief
figure of Justice, the firm's trademark, are etched into the polished
granite surface over the entrance. The first and third bays of the upper
levels are identical with polygonal thrust bay windows at the second and
third floors. The spandresl between these floors have stamped copper

- panels with foliation and the family's coat-of arms. Slender columns run

full height to the top of the two story bay units, terminating in cushion @

floral caps. The fourth floors of both bays ahve have full width round

arches with four-part wood sash. The arches have radiating voussoirs, the ¥

limestone spandrels have medallions with basketweave inserts. A hooded
belt course runs full width between the fourth and fifth floors. The
frieze has floral and geometric castings and three masks. The fifth floor
is the same for all three original bays, with rows of four wood sash in a

ribbon pattern in each bay. The sash are seperated with slender columns .

with floral caps and molded bases-the bays divided with clusters of three
similar columns. The central bay is defined by trefoil columns running
from the second through fourth floors. There is an excellent horseshoe
arch at the second floor, with floral castings. The steel sash is a 1931
replacement. The third and fourth floors in the center bay are a two
story triple arcade with round arches at the upper part and rectangular

openings below. The exceptlonal parapet wall that runs the full width of E;

the original three bays is enriched with heavy medallions and square panels
It is occupied in the center bay by a ciassical pediment with raking cor-
nice and returns, and pyramidal pinnacles at the outer edges. The tympanum:
has a richly carved seated figure of Justice holding a linen scroll with
the name "Hutzler Brothers". The south bay, added in 1924, repeats the
details of the ground floor as changed in 1931. The carved belt course at
the third floor of the original three bays is repeated as is the fourth
floor fenestration. All other windows are rectangular, with transoms and

&

~are arranged in groups of three. When constructed in 1888 the Palace Build-

ing had an exceptional tower and turret at the north corner, overhanging
Clay Street. This was removed in 1931. The interior has been considerably
altered throughout the 20thC, and only two columns remain in view to sub-
staniate the existence of the full height lightwell shown in a c¢.1890
lithograph. )

3. (cont). Brothers Company was established in 1858 at the corner of Clay
and Howards Streets, the site occupying part of the Palace Building site.
Hutzler's grew rapidly and was an important component of the commercial

~
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development of the city . By 1874 it had taken over a three story bulldlng--

two shops south of Clay Street and opened its "One Price Store".The Palace B

Building replaces both of these structures and the one in between as well.

Hutzler's experienced its greatest growth in the 1920's when it opened itsff

Saratoga Street Store and the store-garage across the street, and in 1931

when they built the first five stories of the now ten story North Building;r

The Palace Building marks the site of the first Hutzlers and saw such use
until that part of the company's stores was closed in 1981.




8-2279

Wi e FEw. e 3 M% 9
CNITLD STATES DEPARMENTOF THE N TERIOR e TR  FI-UM00
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE
NATIONAL EEGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES | FCFVEP
INVENTORY -- Nﬂ MENATI ON FORM IDATE ENTERED

SEE INSTRUCTIONS IN HOW TO COMFLETE NATIONAL REGISTER FORMS

TYP! ALL ENTRIES -- COMPLETE APPL CABLE SECTIONS

| INAME

HISTORIC The Palace Building

tzler" Department Store

AND/OR COM. 1!1'“

T

[{LOCATION
STREET & NUMEBER

_210-238 liorth Howard Street .

—NOT FOR PUBLICATION

CITY. TOWN
Baltimore: — VICINITY OF

CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT

STATE CODE
Maryland

COUNTY ccor

[<ICLASSIFICATION

CATEGCRY OWUERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
—_DISTRICT —PUBLIZ % occurted —AGRICULTURE —MUSEUM
X BUILDINGiS) X PRIVATE —UNGCCUPIED }_C..CDMMEROAL —-PARK
—_STRUCTURE __BOTH —WORK IN PROGRES —EDUCATIONAL —=PRIVATE “ESiQENT
—SITE PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE —ENTERTAINMENT __RELIGIOLS
—OBUECT —INPRGCESS —YES: RESTRICTED — GOVERNMENT — SCIENTIFIT
— BEING CONS!DERED )_{.YES: UNRESTRICTED —INDUSTRIAL ——TRANSPC P TATION
—NO —MILITARY —OTHLH:
L JOWNER OF PROPERTY
NAME
Hutzler Brothers Company
STREET & NUMBER B - o T
T e Taw -228-Norih Howard-Street——. - STATE —
Baltimore —__ VICINITY OF Maryland
“‘:m'. 1 1l nl
[5ILOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION
COURTHOUSE.
REGISTRY OF DEEDSETC. paltimore City Courthouse
STREET & NUMBER "‘"
Records Office, Room 601
CITY. TOWN T STATE -
Baltimore Maryland 21202
A REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS
TITLE
_ City of Baltimore MNeighborhood Survey, The CBD West
L L oz b, -
1976 ) —FEDERAL _STATE __COUNTY X_LOCAL

DEPOSITORY FOR
SURVEY RECORDS

CITY, TOWN
Raltimore,

Baltimore Commission for Historic and Architectural Pres.

Maryland 21202




" GESCRIPTION bR

.

A |

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
X _EXCELLENT __DETEZIORATED —UNALTERED X _ORIGINAL SITE
—GOooD —-RUINS X _ALTERED —MOVED DATE
—FAIR —UNE) POSED

DESCRIBE THE I’'RESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Hutzle: Brothers Company Palace Building,210-218 North
Howard Street, was constructed in 1888, with a south bay added
in 1924. The criginal Romanesque eclectic facade is three bays
wide, five stories in height, constructed on limestone with
pressed copper trim to the designs of Baldwin and Pennington,
one of Baltimore's most important architectural firms of the
period. The grcund floor facade has been redesigned as part of
the "Greater Hutzlers" building constructed against the north
wall of this bvilding, and reflects the Art Moderne detailing of
that excellent structure. The ground floor facade is faced with
polished black granite, and repeats the show window details
of the 1931 construction in the first and third bays. These
windows are rectangular, divided into two vertical lights with
heavy metal mullions, and have cast bronze screens covering the
horizontal trarsom-like windows above thz show windows. The main
entrance is recessed into the center bay using splayed walls at
the outer face, and a stepped soffit. Thes details of the entrance
are duplicates of the entrance to the 1931 structure, with a
pair of aluminum revolving doors seperatsd with a vertical window
panel. The semi-circular door enclosures are topped with ribbed
aluminum panels and the flat wall surface above decorated with
horizontal segmental fins, emphasizing the cylindrical form of
the doors. The space above the panel that seperates the doors
has a stylized caduceus, and the entire ipper part of the wall
is framed by bronze panels with sunrise notifs. The side walls
of the recessed entrance have single, rectangular lighted show
windows. The logo "Hutzler Brothers Co. 1858-1888" in Art Moderne
typeface, and a bas-relief seated figure of Justice, the firms

trademark, are =tched into the polished jranite surface above the
entrance.
The first and third bays are identicil in design. The second
and third floors have a polygonal projecting bay window, with
large single lights of glass framed with copper clad round columns
and transom bars. Each window has a full width transom, and the
spandrel between the two floors is sheathed with embossed copper
decorated with a stamped geometric foliated design and the
Hutzler Brothers coat-of-arms in relief. The slender columns run
full height to the roof of the bay unit, terminating in cushioned
floral capitals. The copper cornice of the bay units has a double
~row of dentils below a cyma-reversa crown mold. The fourth flcor

of both bays have full width semi-circular arches with quatrapartite
wood framed windows, fixed in the outer sections, 1/1 double hung

in the two center parts. The face of the arches have radiating
voussoirs without keystones and the ashlar limestone faced span-
drels have bas-relief medallions with interlocking basketweave
inserts. A hooded heavy belt ccurse runs the full width of the
building between the fourth and fifth floors, with a label mcld

and roll mold Lelow a heavily carved frizze and a deep ovolo bed
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mold and cornice. The frieze is carved with Sullivanesque floral

and geometric dzsigns and three masks. Taie design of the Eifth faipor
is constant for all three bays, consisting of rows of four 1/1
double hung sasa arranged in ribbon like fashion within each bay.
below a heavy lintel made up of alternating rusticated and dressed
limestone blocks. The windows in each row are seperated by slender
stone columns w~ith cushioned floral caps and molded bases. The bays
are divided by additional rows of three columns of similar design.

The high parapet wall in the two outiide bays has rectangular
pedestals at th: edges, with carved floral inserts and carved
antefixae. The frieze is composed of alt:rnating squares and circles
each with bas-rz:lief floral designs carv2d within the margins.

The central bay is defined by trefoil columns running from
the second through the fourth floors, with a carved band at the
third floor lev=21 and carved cushioned capitals below the beltk
course between the fourth and fifth floo-s. The carved band at
the third floor level continues across the full bay, creatinu a
belt course of 2xceptional design, using carved Sullivanesque floral
details and masits. The area below this belt course has a full width
horseshoe arch, the face of which and the spandrels repeat the
exceptional stone floral carvings. The margins of the spandrels
and the extrado and soffit of the arch are unenriched. The existing
steel industria' sash is a 1931 replacement of the original wood
framed tripartite sash. The third and fourth floors in the central
bay are a two s:ory high triple arcaded gallery, with segmental
compound openings in the upper part and rectangular openings
below. The arcade is divided with three three part columns with
floral caps and molded necking. The fourth floor windows have round
headed wood 1/1 double hung sash, the third floor 1/1 double hung
sash with operating transoms above. The spandrel is decorated with
recessed squares enclosing pyramidal bosses.

The parapet wall above the central bay is a classical pediment
with raking cornice and returns, supported by 11 scroll conscles
~and outlined at the roof line with tall pyramidal pinnacles. The
richly carved pediment is emblazoned with a large seated figure of
Justice in high relief holding a banner proclaiming her as the
store's trademark. Block letters on a linen fold scroll spell out
"Hutzler Brothers".

The south bay, added_in 1924, repeats the polished granite
facing WLFh large show window and cast bronze grille over the flat
transom—llkg upper window, plus the addition of a recessed plate
glass door in the corner and hexagonal lunette window above the
door. The carved belt course at the third floor of the original
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building is repeated here, as is the flet spandrel with pyram-
idal bosses at the fourth floor level ard the carved frieze at
the fifth. The parapet wall repeats the pyramidal detailing of
the fourth flocr band. The windows in eech bay are triple, with
heavy frames ard recessed transom. The windows in the fourth
floor are decorated by the addition of the same columns used in
the fourth f.cor of the central bay. The fifth floor window details
are identical to those used at this level in the original building.
When built in 1888, the "Palace Building" had an exceptional
projecting tower at the northeast corner, in the right-of-way of
Clay Street. The tower, with its high ccnical roof and flagstaff,
was demolished for the constructicn of the 1931 "Greater Hutzler's
Building" whict is now attached to this structure.
The intericr of the Palace Building has been considerably
altered throughout the twentieth century, and no evidences of
the exceptional original fabric remains to view. Examinations of
the present finish of the first floor inilicates that in all prob-
ability the original cast iron columns ramain under a modern fire~-
proof covering. There is no evidence of the original mezzanine.
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SPECIFIC DATES BUILDER/ARCHITECT

Chd

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The "Hutzler's Palace Building" is an exceptional example
of Romanesque eclectic design, and no finer example of this late
19th Century style exists in Baltimore. Completed in 1888 to the
designs of Baldwin and Pennington, one of tie city's most important
architectural firzs of the period, the soutl! bay was added in 1924
as a compatible expansion of the retail sales space, and the ground
floor was redesigned to the Art Moderne detziling as part of the
1931 expansion of {he Hutzler complex. The c¢round floor visually
and physically unites the Palace Building ard the ten story Creater
Hutzler's contiguous to the north wall of the Palace Building.

The Hutzler Brothers Company was established in 1858 at the
corner of Clay and North Howard Streets, on part of the site of this
structure. Hutzler's rapidy grew in importance to the commercial
community of Baltirnore, and in 1874 took over an existing three
story structure two doors south of the Ciay Street store, opening
a "One Price Store’', when bargaining was the rule. The 1888 Palace
Building replaces both of these earlier buildings and another inbetween.
Hutzler's greatest period of expansion was in the late 1920's when it
opened its Saratoga Street store, and finally in 1932 when the present
day ten story Grealer Hutzler's was opened, at that time only five
stories high. Hutzlers was founded at this location and has been
in continuous operation at this specific site since 1858.
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This Was North Howard Street

FasHioNnaBLE shopping center, theater district, uni-
versity, locale of small merchants in miscellaneous
retail trade, with an occasional tavern thrown in for
good measure—such were the ingredients that con-
tributed to the throbbing activity of North Howard
Street in the last decades of the 19th Century. From
Baltimore Street on the south to Richmond Market
on the north, and from dawn to the small hours after
midnight, there was not a moment of repose. No
wonder that, with this odd assortment of neighbors,
the infant Johns Hopkins was sometimes lost to sight.

BOTH PICTURES FROM LESLIE'

PEALE MUBEUM

Left, Saratoga and Howard
around 1900. Note the hos-
pitable swinging doors to
the tavern, and the ice
wagon at far right. Below, a
busy shopping day at Hutz-
ler’s when bodices and bus-
tles were the mode. Inset,
Joel Gutman’s, around the
corner on Eutaw Street.
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TITLE
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DESCRIPTION
-~
CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE "
XEXCELLENT —_DETERIORATED —UNALTERED X ORIGINAL SITE
—GooD —RUINS X ALTERED —MOVED DATE_
—FAIR —UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The building is three bays wide and five stories high., It has gfay stone foundation
and building walls, Fenestration is synﬁtrical throughout the facade., The first
story facade has been refaced in polished granite. The two outer bays are identical
and are described as follows: ; x

The first story facade is punctuated by a large flat plate glass display window
surmounted by a decorative bronze grille., The 2nd & 3rd story facades are punctuated
by a bay window with.flat, tripartite lights and contiguous flat, tripartite transoms
on either facade, The 4th story facade is punctuated by a full arched quatrapartite
window with wood mullions,

The center bay first story facade is punctuated with a recesses entrance with shallow
display cases to either side of flat revolving doors. The second story facade is
punctuated by a Saracenic arch converted to an eleven light window. The third and
fourth story faczdes are-both punctuated by three double hung windows. They are flat
on the third story and full arched on the 4Lth story. -

The 5th story facade of all:three bays is punctuated by four flat windows with one~ovei-
one lights, Throughout the facade where there are lintels and sills they are of stone,

Excluding the street level facade, the three bays are seperated by compound bilasters with
decorative capitals, Various stone carvings and ornaments decorate the entire facade.

The building facade is surmounted by a modified, decorative stone entsblature that
is pitched over the center bay and carries the store name,

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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—RELIGION

—SCIENCE
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—TRANSPORTATION
—OTHER (SPECIFY)

SPECIFIC DATES

BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Known as the "South" or "Palace" building, this part of Hutzler's was completed

in 1888 to the designs of Baldwin and Pennington.

It replaced a row of three

smaller:stores dating from c. 1840, The eclectic style of the building was

fashionable in its day, and cortairly no finer surviving example is to be found

in the Baltimore area.

acade was redesigned in 1931.

Completed 1888, Baldwin & Pennington Architects

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY

The southern bay is a 1924 addition, and the street
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Hutzler Brothers Palace Building (Hutzler’s South Building)

210-218 N. Howard Street
Sanborn Maps
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B-2279

Hutzler Brothers Palace Building (Hutzler's South Building)
210-218 N. Howard Street

Block 0596, Lot 034

Baltimore City

Baltimore East Quad.
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GIS data Courtesy of
the City of Baltimore, MOIT/EGIS

5‘!

i
o
- | E
-
- n
1 .'L
ALY

E=
i~

I %

i

bid b







f-2277

20-21% N, Hoard

2 ]‘Ib

3. Ptk



